PETITION FOR REVIEW

STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

The claimant, Richard L. Arthur, was an employee of Elk Run Coal Company, Inc. for 

approximately 20 years. During this time, he was exposed daily to the hazards of occupational 

pneumoconiosis including, silica and coal dust. 

Mr. Arthur retired on January 12,2000. Subsequent to his retirement, he filed a claim for 

occupational pneumoconiosis in 1997. His claim was ruled compensable subject to the 

presumptive clause of West Virginia Code §23-4-8(c)(b). 

Mr. Arthur was subsequently referred to the Occupational Pneumoconiosis Board 

(hereinafter "Board") on December 18, 1997. The Board, by x-ray, did not make a diagnosis of 

that disease, nor did it find any pulmonary or gas transfer impairment which it could attribute to 

occupational pneumoconiosis. Accordingly, as of December 18, 1997, Mr. Arthur did not suffer 

from occupational· pneumoconiosis based upon the Findings of the Board. The Claims 

Administrator issued a decision on February 25, 1998, denying an award for occupational 

pneumoconiosis. 

Mr. Arthur filed a second claim for occupational pneumoconiosis in 2002. He was 

referred back to the Occupational Pneumoconiosis Board on February 12, 2002. Again, the 

Board found insufficient evidence to make a diagnosis of occupational pneumoconiosis, nor did 

it find any pulmonary or gas transfer impairment attributable to that disease. 

Mr. Arthur filed his third claim for occupational pneumoconiosis on October 1, 2015. By 

Claims Administrator ruling dated February 2, 2016, Hea1thSrnart rejected Mr. Arthur's claim on 

the basis that it was a "duplicate claim" because he did not have any additional exposure 

subsequent to the filing of his original claim with the date of last exposure of January 12,2000. 



This order was timely protested by the claimant. By decision dated, January 31, 2017, the Office 

of Judges correctly reversed the aforesaid Claims Administrator's ruling and found the claim 

timely filed. 

ISSUE 

Was the Board ofReview's Order consistent with the facts of the case as well as the 

statutory law? 

ARGUMENTANDPOThITSOFAUTBOruITY 

The denial ofthis claim by HealthSmart was, at best, absurd. The West Virginia Code 

sections cited in its decision are devoid of any language which remotely prohibits the filing of 

the new claim when there has been no subsequent exposure to dust. In fact, there is absolutely 

no statutory provision which supports the denial of this claim. West Virginia has always 

recognized the progressive nature ofoccupational pneumoconiosis. Lester v. State Workers' 

Compensation Commission. 242 S.E.2d 443 (W.Va. 1978). Furthermore, West Virginia Code 

§23-4-16(a)(2) specifically states that occupational pneumoconiosis is a progressive disease. 

In West Virginia, the Board in workers compensation claims for occupational 

pneumoconiosis, has the sole and exclusive authority to determine ifa claimant has an x-ray 

diagnosis of occupational pneumoconiosis and whether or not there is any pulmonary or gas 

transfer impairment which the Board can attribute to the claimant's disease. West Virginia Code 

§23-4-8c(a) [emphasis added]; As such, if the Board makes a determination that a claimant does 

not suffer from occupational pneumoconiosis, nor is there any pulmonary or gas transfer 

impairment, then its finding negates any prior fmdings of a diagnosis by any other physician. 

Contrary to Respondent's argument which mixes and matches various statutes in a 

desperate attempt to support its position, there is absolutely no statute which prohibits a claimant 
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from filing a new claim for occupational pneumoconiosis when there has been no subsequent 

hazardous dust exposure after the Board's initial examination. In fact, West Virginia Code §23

4-8c(e) specifically permits the filing of a new occupational pneumoconiosis claim after a prior 

occupational pneumoconiosis claim had been denied because the Board did not fmd any 

evidence of occupational pneumoconiosis. It states as follows: 

"In the event that a claimant receives a fmal decision that he or she 
has no evidence of occupational pneumoconiosis, the claimant is 
barred for a period of three years from the date ofthe Occupational 
Pneumoconiosis Board's decision or until his or her employment 
with the employer who employed the claimant at the time 
designated as the claimant's last date of exposure in the denied 
claim has terminated, whichever is sooner, from filing a new claim 
or pursuing a previously filed, but unruled upon, claim for 
occupational pneumoconiosis or requesting a modification of any 
prior ruling fmding him or her not to be suffering from 
occupational pneumoconiosis. For the purposes of this subsection, 
a claimant's employment shall be considered to be terminated if, 
for any reason, he or she has not worked for that employer for a 
period in excess of ninety days. Any previously filed, but unruled 
upon, claim shall be consolidated with the claim in which the 
board's decision is made and shall be denied together with the 
decided claim. The provisions of this subsection shall not be 
applied in any claim where doing so would, in and of itself, later 
cause a claimant's claim to be forever barred by the provisions of 
section fifteen of this article." [emphasis added] 

Under the plain language of this statue it is uncontroverted that a claimant can file a new 

claim or file a modification of any prior ruling. Furthermore, a claimant is not prohibited from 

filing a new claim for occupational pneumoconiosis when there has been no subsequent 

hazardous dust exposure. Accordingly, the Claims Administrator's defense of a "duplicate 

claim" is void of any basis whatsoever to support the denial of this claim. Given the progressive 

nature ofoccupational pneumoconiosis, it was clearly the enactor's intent in this legislation to 

protect a claimant's right to file a new claim even when there has been no subsequent exposure 

to hazardous dust. 
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The appellant also asserts that West Virginia Code §23-4-15(b) and §23-4-15b, somehow 

supports its position that the claimant is barred from filing a subsequent claim. These statutes set 

forth the time limitation for the filing of a claim for occupational pneumoconiosis. West 

Virginia Code §23-4-15(b) sets forth the current statute of limitations for the filing of an 

occupational pneumoconiosis claim. It was enacted subsequent to the 2003 legislation changes 

which terminated the statutory 5% permanent partial disability award for the diagnosis of 

occupational pneumoconiosis without any impairment. It states as follows: 

"To entitle any employee to compensation for occupational 
pneumoconiosis under the provisions of this subsection, the 
application for compensation shall be made on the form or forms 
prescribed by the Insurance Commissioner, and filed with the 
Insurance Commissioner, private carrier or self-insured employer, 
whichever is applicable, within three years from and after the last 
day of the last continuous period of sixty days or more during 
which the employee was exposed to the hazards of occupational 
pneumoconiosis or within three years from and after a diagnosed 
impairment due to occupational pneumoconiosis was made known 
to the employee by a physician and unless filed within the three
year period, the right to compensation under this chapter is forever 
barred, such time limitation being hereby declared to be a 
condition of the right and hence jurisdictional, or, in the case of 
death, the application shall be filed by the dependent of the 
employee within two years from and after the employee's death, 
and such time limitation is a condition of the right and hence 
jurisdictional. " [emphasis added] 

Appellant further relies upon West Virginia Code §23-4-15b. This statute was previously 

used when the claimants were entitled to a statutory 5% permanent partial disability award based 

upon the Board's x-ray diagnosis of occupational pneumoconiosis without impairment. It states 

as follows: 

"If a claim for occupational pneumoconiosis benefits is filed by an 
employee within three years from and after the last day of the last 
continuous period of sixty days' exposure to the hazards of 
occupational pneumoconiosis, the Insurance Commissioner, 
private carrier or self-insured employer, whichever is applicable, 
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shall detennine whether the claimant was exposed to the hazards of 
occupational pneumoconiosis for a continuous period ofnot less 
than sixty days while in the employ of the employer within three 
years prior to the filing ofhis or her claim, whether in the State of 
West Virginia the claimant was exposed to such hazard over a 
continuous period ofnot less than two years during the ten years 
immediately preceding the date ofhis or her last exposure to the 
hazard and whether the claimant was exposed to the hazard over a 
period of not less than ten years during the fifteen years 
immediately preceding the date ofhis or her last exposure to the 
hazard. If a claim for occupational pneumoconiosis benefits is flled 
by an employee within three years from and after the employee's 
occupational pneumoconiosis was made known to the employee by 
a physician, the Insurance Commissioner, private carrier or self
insured employer, whichever is applicable, shall determine 
whether the claimant filed his or her application witlrin that 
period ... " 

These two statutes, as noted, set forth the time limitations to file a claim. Contrary to 

appellant's assertions, if any employee does not file within the three years following his date of 

last exposure to dust, he is not automatically barred from :filing a claim. The Petitioner was 

diagnosed as having occupational pneumoconiosis by Dr. Jennifer Hadley on August 4,2015. In 

order for the three year statute oflimitations to begin to run, a physician must also find that he 

had a "diagnosed impairment" due to occupational pneumoconiosis. Dr. Hadley, in her 

Physician's Report of Occupational Pneumoconiosis, was unable to determine if Mr. Arthur was 

impaired from returning to work. 

"Diagnosed impairment" is not defined in the West Virginia Code. Until a claimant is ... ". 

found by a physician as having a "diagnosed impairment," the statute of limitations under the 

aforesaid statutory language (West Virginia Code §23-4-15(b)) does not begin to run. 

Accordingly, Mr~ West's application was clearly timely filed, and was not barred by these 

statutes. For the appellant to argue otherwise is simply not supported by the statutory language it 

has cited in its brief 
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Further, the language contained in West Virginia Code §23-4-15b does not prohibit a 

claimant from filing a new claim for occupational pneumoconiosis. As noted previously, the 

Board, in its two preceding examinations, did not find that the Petitioner suffered from 

occupational pneumoconiosis. As such, his statute of limitations would not have begun to run 
.. '" 

until August 4, 2015, after Dr. Hadley's x-ray diagnosis. 

The appellant in this case has presented absolutely no statutory or common law which 

prohibits the filing ofa new claim for occupational pneumoconiosis without subsequent 

exposure. In fact, the statutory language expressly gives the right to a claimant to file a new 

claim after three years of the Board's Findings that there was no occupational pneumoconiosis. 

CONCLUSION 

For the foregoing reasons, the November 2,2017, Order of the Board of Review must be 

reversed and the Office of Judge's Order of January 31, 2017, be reinstated.