RESPONSE TO ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 

THE BOARD OF REVIEW'S ORDER OF NOVEMBER 2, 2017, REVERSING 
THE JANUARY 31,2017, DECISION OF THE OFFICE OF JUDGES IS 
NEITHER CLEARLY WRONG NOR CONTRARY TO LAW.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

A. Procedural History 

The Petitioner seeks to overturn the November 2,2017, Order of the Board of 

Review which reversed a January 31,2017, Decision of the Office of Judges. The 

Claims Administrator rejected a claim for occupational pneumoconiosis benefits as a 

"duplicate claim" and found the Claimant had no additional exposure. The Office of 

Judges reversed and found the Claimant was not barred from filing this claim with the 

same date of last exposure as a prior claim and found the claim was timely filed. The 

Commissioner appealed to the Board of Review. The Board of Review reversed the 

Office of Judges finding the claim must be rejected pursuant to West Virginia Code § 

23-4-15(b). The Board of Review reinstated the Claims Administrator's Order insofar as 

it rejected the claim. However, the Claims Administrator's rationale for the rejection of 

the claim was not adopted. Consequently, the issue on appeal is whether the 

Claimant's application for occupational pneumoconiosis benefits was properly rejected 

pursuant to West Virginia Code § 23-4-15(b). It is the Commission's position that the 

Board of Review's Order was neither clearly wrong nor contrary to law and should be 

affirmed. 

B. Statement of Facts 

According to his application for benefits, Claimant worked as a coal miner from 

1973 through 1984 and again from 1991 through 2000. Claimant's last date of 



exposure to hazardous dust was January 12, 2000. Claimant has not worked since this 

date. App., p. 68. 

Claimant first filed for Occupational Pneumoconiosis ("OP") benefits under claim 

number 970058770. The OP Board issued findings dated December 18, 1997, finding 

insufficient evidence of OP. App., p. 93. By Claims Administrator's order dated 

February 25, 1998, the Claimant was granted no award for permanent partial disability 

("PPO") OP based upon th"e OP Board's findings. App., p. 92. 

Claimant filed a second claim for OP under claim number 2002026846. App., p. 

87. The OP Board issued new findings dated February 12, 2002. App., p. 82. The OP 

Board again found insufficient evidence to establish a diagnosis of OP. The Claims 

Administrator issued an order dated April 2, 2002, granting no award for PPO based 

upon the OP Board's findings. The Claims Administrator's order was affirmed by the 

Office of Judges in a decision dated December 1,2003, which found the Claimant had 

failed to submit credible evidence of OP. App., p. 76. 

More recently, the Claimant applied for OP benefits on September 14,2015. 

App., p. 68. The Claimant's application included an X-ray dated August 4,2015, which 

diagnosed the Claimant with simple pneumoconiosis. App., p. 72. However, the 

Physician's Report of Occupational Pneumoconiosis completed by Dr. Hadley, also 

included in the Claimant's application for OP benefits application, noted that it was 

"unknown" if the Claimant's capacity for work had been impaired due to OP. App., p. 70. 

The Claimant filed for OP benefits on October 1, 2015. 

The Claimant's application for OP benefits was denied by Claims Administrator's 

order dated February 2, 2016, which found that the Claimant had no additional 
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exposure and the claim was a "duplicate claim." App., p. 24. The Claimant protested 

the order. In a decision dated January 31,2017, the ALJ reversed the Claims 

Administrator's order. App., p. 5. In a lengthy decision, the ALJ found that the claim 

was not barred as a "duplicate claim." The ALJ stated that "the Claimant is not 

prohibited from filing a claim for occupational pneumoconiosis even if there has been no 

subsequent hazardous dust exposure." The ALJ continued stating, "[f]urthennore, 

pN.va. Code §23-4-15(b )}'shall not be applied' in such a manner where the Claimant 

would be 'forever barred' from filing a claim." The ALJ concluded that n[g]iven the 

progressive nature of occupational pneumoconiosis and the latency of detection, it is 

found that it is the intention of Legislature to protect a claimant's right to file a new claim 

under the diagnosed impairment portion of § 23-4-15(b) even if there has been no 

subsequent exposure to hazardous dust." Therefore, the ALJ found that the subject 

claim, was not a "duplicative claim" as the "discovery of diagnosed impainnent' prong of 

23-4-15(b) does not require a showing of additional exposure" to hazardous dust and 

the ~Iaimant had filed a timely application. 

The Commission appealed to the Board of Review ("Board"). The Board 

reversed the Office of Judges. App., p. 1. The Claims Administrator's rationale for 

rejecting the claim, e.g., the claim was a duplicate claim and there was no additional 

exposure, was not adopted by the Board. Instead, the Board found the claim must be 

rejected pursuant to West Virginia Code § 23-4-15(b). The Board found that pursuant to 

this Code section, a claimant must satisfy one of two criteria. A claimant must file a 

claim within three years from and after the last day of exposure or within three years 

from the date a diagnosed impairment due to OP was made known to the claimant by a 
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physician. Neither criteria were met in this claim. Consequently, the Board found the 

rejection of the claim must be reinstated. It is from this Order Claimant appeals. 

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

The Board's order should be affirmed because it is neither clearly wrong nor 

contrary to law. West Virginia Code § 23-4-15(b) clearly provides that a claimant must 

satisfy one of two criteria in order to file a claim for OP benefits. A claimant must either 

1) file a claim within three years from and after the date of last exposure to the hazards 

of occupational pneumoconiosis, or 2) file the claim within three years from and after a 

diagnosed impairment due to occupational pneumoconiosis was made known to the 

claimant by a physician. In the instant claim, neither of these two criteria were met. 

Consequently, the Board properly rejected Claimant's application for OP benefits. 

Claimant's arguments concerning a claimant's ability to file a new claim for OP benefits, 

the progressive nature of occupational pneumoconiosis, and additional dust exposure 

are without merit. Moreover, as those claims were also rejected by the Board they are 

not before the Court on appeal. The sole issue on appeal is whether"the Claimant has 

provided sufficient evidence with his application for OP benefits to satisfy the criteria 

enumerated in West Virginia Code § 23-4-15(b). 

STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT 

In accordance with Rule 18(a)(3)and (4), West Virginia Revised Rules of 

Appellate Procedure, the dispositive issue has previously been authoritatively decided, 

the facts and legal arguments are adequately presented in the briefs and record on 

appeal, and the decisional process would not be significantly aided by oral argument. 

Consequently, oral argument is not requested. Moreover, since no new issue of law is 
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presented, a memorandum decision is appropriate under Rule 21 of the Revised Rules 

of Appellate Procedure. 

ARGUMENT 

A.. Standard of Review. 

W.va. Code § 23-5-15 sets forth the standard of review of an appeal before this 

Court. W.Va. Code § 23-5-15 (2011) states, in relevant part: 

(b) In reviewing a decision of the board of review, the supreme court of appeals 
shall consider the record provided by the board and give deference to the board's 
findings, reasoning and conclusions, in accordance with subsections (c) and (d) 
of th is section. 

(c) If the decision of the board represents an affirmation of a prior ruling by both 
the commission and the office of judges that was entered on the same issue in 
the same claim, the decision of the board may be reversed or modified by the 
supreme court of appeals only if the decision is in cleat violation of constitutional 
or statutory provision, is clearly the result of erroneous conclusions of law, or is 
based upon the board's material misstatement or mischaracterization of 
particular components of the evidentiary record. The court may not conduct a de 
novo re-weighing of the evidentiary record. If the court reverses or modifies a 
decision of the board pursuant to this subsection, it shall state with specificity the 
basis for the reversal or modification and the manner in which the decision of the 
board clearly violated constitutional or statutory provisions, resulted from 
erroneous conclusions of law, or was based upon the board's material 
misstatement or mischaracterization of particular components of the evidentiary 
record. 

(d) If the decision of the board effectively represents a reversal of a prior ruling of 
either the commission or the office of judges that was entered on the same issue 
in the same claim, the decision of the board may be reversed or modified by the 
supreme court of appeals only if the decision is in clear violation of constitutional 
or statutory provisions, is clearly the result of erroneous conclusions of law, or is 
so clearly wrong based upon the evidentiary record that even when all inferences 
are resolved in favor of the board's findings, reasoning and conclusions, there is 
insufficient support to sustain the decision. The court may not conduct a de novo 
re-weighing of the evidentiary record. If the court reverses or modifies a decision 
of the board pursuant to this subsection, it shall state with specificity the basis for 
the reversal or modification and the manner in which the decision of the board 
clearly violated constitutional or statutory provisions, resulted from erroneous 
conclusions of law, or was so clearly wrong based upon the evidentiary record 
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that even when all inferences are resolved in favor of the board's findings, 
reasoning and conclusions, there is insufficient support to sustain the decision. 

The Board of Review can only be reversed if "the decision is in clear violation of 

constitutional or statutory provision, is clearly the result of erroneous conclusions of law, 

or is based upon the board's material misstatement or mischaracterization of particular 

components of the evidentiary record." 

The findings and conclusions of the Administrative Law Judge are to be treated 

with deference by the Appeal Board. Conley v. Wo!1<ers' Compensation Division, 199 

W. Va. 196,483 S.E.2d 542 (1997). In addition, the "clearly wrong" standard which is' 

sometimes referred to as the "plainly wrong" standard of review set out in W. Va. Code 

§ 23-5-12(b) is a deferential one, which presumes an administrative tribunal's actions 

are valid as long as supported by substantial evidence. Syl. Pt. 3, In re Queen, 196 W. 

Va. 442, 473 S.E.2d 483 (1996). FrymierwHalloran v. Paige, 193 W. Va. 687, 695, 458 

S.E.2d 780, 788 (1995). Confey, supra.; Furthennore, determinations regarding 

credibility and reliability by an Administrative Law Judge were addressed by the 

Supreme Court in Martin v. Rando/ph County Board of Education, 195 W. Va. 297,465 

S.E.2d 399 (1995) wherein the Court stated that as a general rule, "we uphold the 

factual determinations, a matter reserved exclusively for the trier of fact." Accordingly, 

the Supreme Court noted that deference should also be given to an Administrative Law 

Judge's credibility determinations and inferences drawn from the evidence, despite what 

the Court [or Board] may perceive as other, more reasonable conclusions, from the 

evidence. Id. 

6 




B. Discussion. 

The Board's Order of November 2,2017, should be affirmed as it is neither 

clearly wrong nor contrary to law. The Board correctly found that Claimant's application 

must be rejected pursuant to the provisions of West Virginia Code § 23-4-15(b). This 

Code section provides in pertinent part 

[t]o entitle any employee to compensation for occupational pneumoconiosis 
under the provisions of this subsection, the application for compensation 
shall be made on the form or forms prescribed by the Insurance 
Commissioner, and filed with the Insurance Commissioner, private carrier 
or self-insured 'employer, whichever is applicable, within three years from 
and after the last day. of the last continuous period of sixty days or more 
during which the employee was exposed to the hazards of occupational 
pneumoconiosis or within three years from and after a diagnosed 
impairment due to occupational pneumoconiosis was made known to the 
employee by a physician and unless filed within the three-year period, the 
right to compensation under this chapter is forever barred, such time 
limitation being hereby declared to be a condition of the right and hence 
jurisdictional, or, in the case of death, the application shall be filed by the 
dependent of the employee within two years from and after the employee's 
death, and such time limitation is a condition of the right and hence 
jurisdictional. 

The Board found that pursuant to this statute in an OP claim that does not 

involve a death, a claimant must satisfy one of the following criteria: 1) file the claim 

within three years from and after the last day of the last continuous period of sixty days 

.or more during which the claimant was exposed to the hazards of occupational 

pneumoconiosis, or 2) file the claim within three years from and after a diagnosed 

impairment due to occupational pneumoconiosis was made known to the claimant by a 

physician. The Board correctly found that in the instant claim neitherof these criteria 

were met. Consequently, the Board found the claim must be rejected. Notably; the 

Board chose not to adopt the claims administrator's rationale that the claim was a 

"duplicate" claim and that the Claimant had not had any additional dust exposure since 
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the prior applications. Instead, the Board rejected the claim solely on the provisions of 

West Virginia Code § 23-4-15(b). 

In this claim, it is undisputed that Claimant did not meet the first criteria of West 

Virginia Code § 23-4-15(b). Claimant clearly has not filed this claim within three years 

of his last date of exposure to dust hazards. At issue, is whether the Claimant has met 

the second criterion of the statute. The evidence of record shows that Claimant has not. 

Claimant did submit an X-ray report from Dr. Ahmed with the impression of simple 

pneumoconiosis. However, the Physician's Report completed by Dr. Hadley does not 

make a diagnosed impairment due to occupational pneumoconiosis. In response to the 

question "has the claimant's capacity for work been impaired by occupational 

pneumoconiosis," Dr. Hadley writes "unknown." While the Claimant may have 

developed a simple pneumoconiosis, there is no evidence of record that there is a 

resulting pulmonary impairment due to OP. Consequently, Claimant has failed to satisfy 

the criteria set forth in the statute. 

Petitioner's arguments on appeal are not germane to the Board's finding that the 

claim must be rejected pursuant to West Virginia Code § 23-4-15(b). Petitioner's first 

argument is that Claimant is not prohibited from filing a new claim when there is no 

additional exposure. The Board did not make a finding that a claimant is barred from 

filing a new claim when there is no additional exposure. Although this argument was 

part of the claims administrator's original rationale for denying the claim, the Board 

expressly chose not to adopt this rationale. Instead, the Board rejected the application 

for benefits based solely on the limitations of West Virginia Code § 23-4-15(b). The 

Board did not make a ruling prohibiting Claimant from filing new claims for OP benefits 

," 

8 




or requiring additional exposure to file a new claim. The board simply found that to file a 

new claim the statute requires the claimant be informed of a diagnosed impairment by a 

physician. Similarly, Petitioner's argument that the OP Board has the exclusive 

authority to determine the amount of impairment attributable to OP is not relevant to 

Board's ruling below. West Virginia Code § 23-4-15(b) does not provide that a treating 

physician must attribute a percentage of impairment due to OP. Rather, it only provides 

that a diagnosed impairment must be conveyed to a claimant. Claimant's physician, Dr. 

Hadley, did not make a finding that Claimant has a diagnosed impairment. She simply 

stated it was unknown if Claimant had a diagnosed impairment. Petitioner admits in his 

brief that Dr. Hadley was unable to determine if Claimant was impaired from returning to 

work. Had Dr. Hadley found a diagnosed impairment, the claim would have proceeded 

to the OP Board for a determination of whether the OP Board agreed the Claimant had 

contracted OP, and, if so, the proper amount of impairment. 

The plain language of West Virginia Code § 23-4-15(b) requires a claimant to 

make a showing of a diagnosed impairment in order to proceed with an OP claim. In 

creating this limitation, the Legislature has recognized the progressive nature of OP as 

well as the need to police the claims process against frivolous claims. Petitioner's 

interpretation of the statute would allow any claim to proceed to the OP Board 

regardless of whether a claimant produced any evidence of a diagnosed impairment. 

Under the Petitioner's interpretation of the statute a claimant could submit an application 

with X-ray evidence finding no evidence of OP and a physician's report making no 

diagnosis of OP. Petitioner's interpretation would still require the claim to be evaluated 

by the OP Board to make a determination of whether a claimant has OP despite the fact 
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that the medical evidence submitted by the Claimant made no showing of OP. Such an 

interpretation would allow frivolous claims to proceed and unnecessarily expend limited 

State resources. The statute's requirement to require a claimant to make a showing of 

a diagnosed impairment is not burdensome to the claimant yet accommodates the 

progressive nature of OP. Moreover, Claimant's interpretation of the statute would 

render the limitations of West Virginia Code § 23-4-15(b) meaningless. 

The plain language of West Virginia Code § 23-4-15(b) provides that Claimant 

must file a claim for OP benefits within three years of the date of last exposure to the 

hazards of occupational pneumoconiosis or within three years after a diagnosis of OP 

has been made known to the Claimant. In the instant case the Board correctly found 

that the Claimant had met neither of these criteria. 

WHEREFORE, for the reasons stated more fully above, the Commissioner 

respectfully requests the Order of the Board of Review be AFFIRMED. 

Respectfully submitted, 

INSURANCE COMMISSIONER OF WV 
IN ITS CAPACITY AS ADMNINSTRATOR 

OF THE OLD FUND, 


By Counsel, 


SENIOR ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL 
WVBAR#6557 
Workers Compensation Litigation Division 
Post Office Box 4318 
Charleston, West Virginia 25364-4318 
(304) 558-0708